# MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE STAFFING COMMITTEE

The meeting took place in a virtual environment using "Zoom" video conferencing technology and members of the public and press were given the opportunity to observe or participate in the meeting.

Held on Wednesday 23<sup>rd</sup> September 2020 at 7.00pm

PRESENT: Cllr Tony Ring, Town Mayor

Cllr John Haywood

Cllr Jeremy Heron, Chairman of the Policy & Finance Committee

Cllr Gloria O'Reilly

IN ATTENDANCE: Mr Chris Wilkins, Town Clerk

Mrs Jo Hurd, Deputy Town Clerk

ABSENT: Cllr Darren Loose

S/0032

# **ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN**

Cllr Haywood was nominated for Chairman. There were no other nominations.

**RESOLVED:** That Cllr Haywood be elected as Chairman of the Staffing Committee.

Cllr Haywood took the Chair for the remainder of the meeting.

S/0033

# **PUBLIC PARTICIPATION**

No members of the public were present.

S/0034

# **APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE**

The Clerk reported that apologies for absence had been received from Cllr Loose.

S/0035

# **DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST**

No interests were declared.

S/0036

### MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING

**RESOLVED**: That the minutes of the meeting held on 16<sup>th</sup> December 2019, having been

circulated, be approved and signed by the Chairman as a correct record.

S/0037

### PENSIONS ELIGIBILITY POLICY

After considering the Town Clerk's report (*Annex A*)

**RESOLVED**: That the Pensions Eligibility Policy be adopted.

**ACTION** C Wilkins/J Hurd

### S/0038

### **HUMAN RESOURCES MANAGEMENT UPDATE**

The Town Clerk and Deputy Town Clerk gave a verbal update on recent developments.

It was noted that all staff who could work from home were doing so; the information service was operating on reduced hours; the Clubhouse was now open 4 days a week and grounds staff were working as normal, all in compliance with legislation and government guidance. Risk assessments had been carried out for all functions and were under constant review. Members wished to thank all staff for their flexibility, willingness and perseverance during these uncertain times.

**RESOLVED**: That the verbal report be noted.

### S/0039

### KICKSTART SCHEME

Members considered a report from the Town Clerk and Clubhouse Manager (*Annex B*) and agreed the Kickstart Scheme presented an excellent opportunity for the Council to assist a young person to gain work experience and life skills.

**RESOLVED**: That the principle of Carvers Clubhouse participating in the Kickstart Scheme be supported.

# ACTION C Wilkins/C Bennett

### S/0040

# **EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC**

**RESOLVED**: That, in accordance with section 1(2) of the Public Bodies (Admission to Meetings) Act 1960, the press and public be excluded because publicity would be prejudicial to the public interest by reason of the confidential nature of the business to be transacted (staffing matters) (*Confidential Annex C*)

### S/0041

# OFFICE STAFFING MATTER I

After considering the Town Clerk's and Deputy Town Clerk's report (Confidential Annex D)

RESOLVED: That the Events Coordinator's Contract of Employment be amended as agreed.

# **ACTION C Wilkins/J Hurd**

### S/0042

### **OFFICE STAFFING MATTER II**

Members considered the Town Clerk's report (Confidential Annex E).

**RESOLVED:** That the Town Clerk be authorised to proceed as agreed.

### **ACTION C Wilkins**

There being no further business, the Chairman closed the meeting at 8.13pm.

Note: The text in the Action Boxes above does not form part of these minutes.

RECEIVED APPROVED

TOWN MAYOR

**COMMITTEE CHAIRMAN** 

# A

#### STAFFING COMMITTEE

### 18 March 2019

# **Report on Pension Eligibility Policy**

- 1. Introduction and reason for report
  - 1.1 Further to the discussion of this issue at the committee meeting on 19<sup>th</sup> June 2019, a draft Pension Eligibility Policy has been prepared in accordance with the directions then given by members.
- 2. Background information, options, impact assessment and risks
  - 2.1 The report prepared for the earlier meeting mentioned is attached as Annex A.
  - 2.2 The draft policy is attached as Annex B.
  - 2.3 Members' attention is drawn to paragraph 2.4 in particular. Whilst it represents a departure from practice to date and will result in a modest increase in overall pension contributions, it seems neither rational nor fair that, for example, pension contributions are presently paid for an employee who holds two different roles with the Council, in one role but not in the other. Disaggregating employees' roles also complicates the payroll process and this change will help to align our records with those of our payroll provider.
- 3. <u>Issues for decision and any recommendations</u>

Do members feel able to recommend to the Council that the draft Pension Eligibility Policy prepared by officers be adopted? (RECOMMENDATION: Recommend approval)

For further information, contact:

Chris Wilkins, Town Clerk
Direct Dial: 01425 484720

Jo Hurd, Deputy Town Clerk
Direct Dial: 01425 484721

Email: <a href="mailto:chris.wilkins@ringwood.gov.uk">chris.wilkins@ringwood.gov.uk</a>
Email: <a href="mailto:jo.hurd@ringwood.gov.uk">jo.hurd@ringwood.gov.uk</a>

### STAFFING COMMITTEE



### 19 June 2019

# **Report on Pension Eligibility Policy**

- 1. Introduction and reason for report
  - 1.1 Uncertainties have arisen about eligibility of some new employees for enrolment to the Council's chosen pension scheme on which officers need guidance from members.
- 2. Background information, options, impact assessment and risks
  - 2.1 Like any other employer, the Council is required to comply with legal obligations to enrol employees in a pension scheme, commonly called "auto-enrolment". It has also adopted as policy that all employees will be engaged on the standard terms of employment commonly called the "Green Book". In 2013 the Council resolved (by way of confirmation of previous decisions) to enrol all "eligible" employees in the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) as administered by Hampshire Pension Fund.
  - 2.2 "Auto-enrolment" specifies certain classes of staff who must be enrolled and others who may ask to be. The Green Book and staff contracts are silent on the subject of eligibility for enrolment. Accordingly, staff who must be enrolled under auto-enrolment must (as matters stand) be enrolled into LGPS. However, LGPS does not define which employees are "eligible" for enrolment, leaving this to the discretion of the Council. Because, apparently, this point was not appreciated in 2013, the Council currently has no written policy on the subject.
  - 2.3 The position has been complicated further by two classes of employee:
    - 2.3.1 those transferred to the Council with prior entitlements; and
    - 2.3.2 those recruited on terms that do not specify fixed or even minimum hours.

This has led to some variation, inconsistency and even uncertainty. (Some employees holding more than one role are enrolled for one but not the other.)

- 2.4 The Council has three options: offer to enrol the holder of every post into LGPS from day 1 of their employment; align LGPS enrolment to auto-enrolment or create a bespoke LGPS enrolment policy (meeting minimum auto-enrolment requirements).
- 2.5 Offering enrolment of every post-holder into LGPS from day 1 would be the simplest and clearest policy but it would add to the payroll expense. It would also potentially involve a lot of work for no material benefit in those cases (few but not insignificant) where employees start on very limited hours and/or relatively low pay and do not complete their probationary period or leave soon after for other reasons.
- 2.6 Aligning LGPS enrolment to auto-enrolment would be significantly more complicated. Auto-enrolment rights and duties depend on whether pay thresholds are exceeded in each pay period (so an employee with fluctuating pay may have to be enrolled one month but not the next). It might still result in an employee with more than one role being enrolled for one but not the other (and this might make it harder to attract applicants of the desired standard for certain roles).

- 2.7 Creating a bespoke eligibility policy would allow greater flexibility and scope to simplify matters. It would have to meet auto-enrolment obligations, so it could not be used to avoid or defer enrolling employees who have to be enrolled under auto-enrolment. However, as an example, it could say that all employees earning more than a certain amount become eligible three months after their start date (the maximum postponement allowed under auto-enrolment). This would avoid the need for time-consuming re-assessments every month and reduce the trouble and expense associated with failed probationers. It requires the most work preparing and agreeing a policy now but saves time and money in the long run. Accordingly, this is the option that officers recommend.
- 3. <u>Issues for decision and any recommendations</u>

Do members feel able to recommend that a draft Pension Eligibility Policy be prepared by officers and, if so, are members content to approve the principles of universal eligibility (above a *de minimis* pay threshold) and maximum postponement of enrolment? (RECOMMENDATION: Recommend approval)

For further information, contact:

Chris Wilkins, Town Clerk
Direct Dial: 01425 484720

Jo Hurd, Deputy Town Clerk
Direct Dial: 01425 484721

Email: <a href="mailto:chris.wilkins@ringwood.gov.uk">chris.wilkins@ringwood.gov.uk</a>
Email: <a href="mailto:jo.hurd@ringwood.gov.uk">jo.hurd@ringwood.gov.uk</a>





# **Pensions Eligibility Policy**

Adopted on: [insert date of member approval]

# 1. Introduction

This Policy supplements the decision made on 20<sup>th</sup> February 2013 by the Policy and Finance Committee that "the existing policy that allows all eligible employees to join the Local Government Pension Scheme be continued" by defining which employees are to be treated as "eligible" for this purpose and clarifying some related issues.

Throughout this Policy the terms "worker" and "workers" shall have the meanings specified in workplace pensions legislation.

# 2. Workplace pension scheme

- 2.1 The Council will meet it's legal obligations to its workers, in respect of a workplace pension scheme, by encouraging and enabling them to join the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS). Nothing in this Policy shall in any way derogate from or diminish the workplace pension rights of Council workers nor is it intended to discourage any worker from exercising those rights.
- 2.2 When enrolling workers into LGPS, the Council will offer whatever options LGPS makes available at the time (including participation in the 50/50 Section rather than the Main Section) provided such options satisfy the minimum contribution requirements provided by law. The Council will respect any subsequent changes made by workers to such options or requests to leave LGPS altogether but will never encourage workers to make such choices.

- 2.3 The Council will treat all workers as eligible to join LGPS (whether they fulfil the statutory definitions of "Eligible jobholder", "Non-eligible jobholder" or "Entitled worker" or none of the these) if they have qualifying earnings payable by the Council that equal or exceed the lower level of qualifying earnings (from time to time, calculated on a monthly basis).
- 2.4 Where a worker has more than one contract with the Council the Council will, with effect from 1<sup>st</sup> April 2020, treat the contracts together for the purpose of determining pension eligibility.
- 2.5 Once a worker has joined the LGPS, the Council will pay contributions (the employer's in addition to gross pay and the employee's by deduction from gross pay) monthly in accordance with the scheme even if the worker's pay for that month or other pay reference period is less than the amount required to trigger auto-enrolment or eligibility to join LGPS under this policy (save that no contributions will be paid in respect of any month or other pay reference period in which the worker's pay is nil).
- 2.6 The Council will re-assess any workers not enrolled in LGPS every month and:
  - 2.6.1 any worker who was not previously eligible to join LGPS but has become so will be enrolled if required by law and invited to join it if not, as soon as practicable; and
  - 2.6.2 any worker who is eligible to join the scheme but who opted not to do so or who left the scheme will be invited to consider joining (or re-joining) the scheme at least every year.
- 2.7 Enrolment of a worker in LGPS may be deferred in accordance with any lawful "postponement" (as defined in workplace pensions legislation) which the Council is entitled and chooses to apply provided that the worker is given notice as required by such legislation and any other procedural requirements are met.

### STAFFING COMMITTEE

# 23 September 2020



# Report on Job Placements through the Kickstart Scheme

# 1. Introduction and reason for report

1.1 One of the objectives of Carvers Clubhouse has been to provide opportunities for young people. This report seeks to gain support from Members for the Manager to progress with the application to offer a placement to a young person between the age of 18-25 through the Kickstart Scheme.

# 2. Background information

- 2.1 The Kickstart Scheme has been recently launched. It provides funding to employers to create new 6-month job placements for young people who are currently on Universal Credit and at risk of long-term unemployment.
- 2.2 Funding will cover for each job placement:
  - 100% of the relevant National Minimum Wage for 25 hours a week
  - the associated employer National Insurance contributions
  - employer minimum automatic enrolment contributions
- 2.3 The job placements created with Kickstart funding must be new jobs. They must nor replace existing or planned vacancies or cause existing employees or contractors to lose or reduce their employment.
- 2.4 As well as providing skills in their work area, we are also expected to support young people to look for long-term work, including career advice and setting goals and support with CV and interview preparations.
- 2.5 Once a job placement is created, it can be taken up by a second person once the first successful applicant has completed their 6-month term.
- 2.6 Applications must be for a minimum of 30 placements. We are eligible however to apply through a representative acting on behalf of a group of employers. The Hampshire Chamber of Commerce have taken on this role. They are gathering information awaiting further guidance from the government and have asked us to register our interest in participating in the scheme.

### 3. Proposal

3.1 It is proposed that a new position of 'Centre Assistant' be created for this purpose. This person would learn a variety of skills including customer service, food preparation and handling, hygiene, cleaning, money handling and the responsibilities of being a key holder. We will partner with Its Your Choice to work with the young person to develop their skills on CV writing and interview skills. They would be line managed initially by the Café Manager with oversight by the Manager of the Centre.

# 4. Issues for decision and any recommendations

Do members support in principle the proposal for Carvers Clubhouse to participate in the Kickstart Scheme? (RECOMMENDATION: Recommend approval)

For further information, contact:

Chris Wilkins, Town Clerk
Direct Dial: 01425 484720
Email: <a href="mailto:chris.wilkins@ringwood.gov.uk">chris.wilkins@ringwood.gov.uk</a>

Charmaine Bennett, Manager Direct Dial: 01425 501309

Email: Charmaine.bennett@ringwood.gov.uk